

CITY OF BARDSTOWN, KENTUCKY
WORKING SESSION CITY COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES
9-4-2018
5:00 PM

The City Council met in regular session in the Council Chambers with Mayor Heaton and the following Councilmen:

Councilman Joe Buckman
Councilman Kecia Copeland
Councilman David Dones
Councilman John Kelley
Councilman Bill Sheckles
Councilman Roland E. Williams

Others present: City Attorney Tim Butler, City Clerk Mary Riley, City Civil Engineer Jessica Filiatreau, Police Captain Kevin Thompson, Fire Chief Billy Mattingly, The Kentucky Standard Reporter Randy Patrick, PLG-TV Reporter Matt Gordon and guest Vaughn Williams with Kenvirons Engineering.

MINUTES

Councilman Dones proposed one edit to the meeting minutes. Under the INPUT FROM THE PUBLIC category, he suggested changing the sentence from “traffic study for a possible three-way stop light”, to “possible three-way stop sign”.

UPON MOTION BY COUNCILMAN WILLIAMS, DULY SECONDED BY COUNCILMAN KELLEY, THE MINUTES FROM THE 8-28-2018 REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING WERE APPROVED WITH THE EDIT SUGGESTED BY COUNCILMAN DONES. MOTION CARRIED 6 TO 0.

COUNCIL COMMENTS

Councilman Williams reported that the Fire Department Ambassador, Oreo the Dalmatian puppy, received a great deal of publicity while at the State Fair in Louisville. It was positive coverage for the Department and for Bardstown.

MAYOR’S REPORT

Mayor Heaton shared that several of the organizations who recently received donations from the Council have reached out to him to say Thank You.

The Mayor has also reached out to District 4 of the State Transportation Department to move forward with a study the Templin Avenue and North Fifth Street intersection. He believes the City needs their input from studying the traffic pattern and stacking to determine if a three-way stop is the solution to the current traffic issue.

CHLORAMINE CONVERSION PROJECT AT THE WATER TREATMENT PLANT – CHANGE ORDER

City Civil Engineer Filiatreau and Kenvirons Engineer Vaughn Williams explained the reasons for the Change Order being submitted. As presented in the Change Order, several factors contributed to these unanticipated expenses. There was a brief discussion those factors, the increase in expenses and the upcoming conclusion of the project.

UPON MOTION BY COUNCILMAN DONES, DULY SECONDED BY COUNCILMAN BUCKMAN, THE CHANGE ORDER WAS APPROVED AS PRESENTED. MOTION CARRIED 6 TO 0.

HIGHWAY 245 MULTI-USE PATH

City Civil Engineer Filiatreau presented several large display boards to provide an aerial view of the proposed project. She indicated that the advertisement to bid will be published on Friday, 9/7/18. There was discussion of the route the multi-use path would take and the possibility of a Phase 2 to extend the path even further into the City. The Council reviewed the display boards and asked questions. No action was taken.

CRAFT BEER FESTIVAL ROAD CLOSURE REQUEST – 10/20/2018

UPON MOTION BY COUNCILMAN KELLEY, DULY SECONDED BY COUNCILMAN COPELAND, THE REQUEST BY THE STEPHEN FOSTER STORY TO HOST THE 6TH ANNUAL CRAFT BEER FESTIVAL AND CLOSE EAST FLAGET STREET BETWEEN SECOND AND THIRD STREET WAS APPROVED.

FIRST READING OF ORDINANCE B2018-17 CLASSIFICATION AND COMPENSATION PLAN AMENDED

COUNCILMAN DONES MADE A MOTION TO TAKE ORDINANCE B2018-17 OFF THE TABLE. THE MOTION WAS DULY SECONDED BY COUNCILMAN SHECKLES AND CARRIED BY A VOTE OF 6 TO 0.

Councilman Sheckles introduced the Amended version of B2018-17 Classification and Compensation Plan and asked that it be read in summary. City Attorney Butler gave the first reading. No vote was taken.

FIRST READING OF B2018-ZONING SECTION 7.2A: MANUFACTURED HOME SUBDIVISION DISTRICT

Councilman Williams introduced Ordinance B2018-Zoning Section 7.2A: Manufactured Home Subdivision and asked that it be read in full. City Attorney Butler gave the first reading. No vote was taken.

SECOND READING OF B2018-18 CHAPTER 114: ALCOHOLIC BEVERAGES

City Attorney Butler read the ordinance summary. The full ordinance is provided below.

ORDINANCE NO. B2018-Chapter 114 Alcoholic Beverages

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING AND ADOPTING AS AMENDED AN ORDINANCE RELATING TO CHAPTER 114 ALCOHOLIC BEVERAGES OF THE CITY OF BARDSTOWN'S CODE OF ORDINANCES

THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF BARDSTOWN, KENTUCKY DOES ORDAIN AS FOLLOWS:

That amendments be made to CHAPTER 114: ALCOHOLIC BEVERAGES, Sections 114.01 Definitions, 114.20 Classification of Licenses: Fee Schedule, 114.40 Hours of Sale, 114.43 Display of Required Licenses and Certain Signs and 114.99 Penalty of the City of Bardstown's Code of Ordinances as follows:

§ 114.01 DEFINITIONS

"BOTTLING HOUSE OR BOTTLING HOUSE STORAGE LICENSE " The distilled spirits administrator may issue a bottling house or bottling house storage license only to persons who are authorized under this chapter to store or warehouse distilled spirits or wine. The bottling house or bottling house storage license shall authorize the licensee to bottle and store distilled spirits on the premises designated in the license. The holder of a bottling house or bottling house storage license may also hold a distilled spirits and wine storage license.

"BREWER LICENSE" A brewer's license shall authorize the licensee to engage in the business of a brewer at the premises specifically designated in the license, and to transport for itself only any malt beverage which the licensee is authorized by its license to manufacture or sell, but the licensee shall transport any malt beverages in accordance with the requirements provided by KRS 243.120 for distillers. A brewer may sell any malt beverage produced under its license to:

- (a) A licensed wholesaler from the licensed premises;**
- (b) Any of its employees for home consumption;**
- (c) Charitable or fraternal organizations holding group meetings, picnics, or outings; and**
- (d) A customer, strictly limited to the following types of sales on the premises of a brewery located in wet territory:**

1. By the drink sales for consumption on the premises only, to be conducted in a taproom or similar space that is located at the licensed brewery; and

2. Package sales for off-premises consumption only by using a refillable, resealable growler.

A licensed brewer may buy malt beverages from another licensed brewer in this state or nonresident brewer authorized by the law of the state of its residence, and by the United States government if located in the United States, to make these sales. Employees of a licensed brewer may sample the products produced by that manufacturer for purposes of education, quality control, and product development. A brewer may serve on the licensed premises of its brewery complimentary samples of malt beverages produced at the brewery in an amount not to exceed sixteen (16) ounces per patron per day, if the brewery is located in wet territory.

"DISTILLER LICENSE" A license for any person who is engaged in the business of manufacturing distilled spirits. A distiller may sell distilled spirits by the drink or by the package at retail to consumers in accordance with KRS 243.0305.

"DISTRIBUTOR LICENSE" A license for any person who distributes malt beverages for the purpose of being sold at retail.

“MICROBREWERY LICENSE” A microbrewery license shall authorize the licensee to perform the following functions:

(a) Engage in the business of a brewer under the terms and conditions of KRS 243.150, provided that production of malt beverages at the microbrewery shall not exceed fifty thousand (50,000) barrels in one (1) year;

(b) Serve on the premises complimentary samples of malt beverages produced by the microbrewery in amounts not to exceed sixteen (16) ounces per patron, provided the microbrewery is located in wet territory;

(c) Sell malt beverages produced on the premises of the microbrewery to licensed distributors;

(d) Sell malt beverages produced on the premises of the microbrewery for on- and off-premises purposes in accordance with subsection (3)(b) and (c) of this section, pursuant to the following:

1. Without restriction on the amount of malt beverages sold by the drink for on-premises consumption; and

2. With a restriction on the amount of malt beverages sold for off-premises consumption, in an aggregate amount not to exceed thirty-one (31) gallons per person per day that shall not include more than three (3) cases in case format; and

(e) Sell:

1. Unlimited amounts of malt beverages by the drink; and

2. Not more than one (1) case of packaged malt beverages; produced on the premises of the microbrewery to consumers at fairs, festivals, and other similar types of events located in wet territory, in accordance with subsection (3)(b)2. and (c)2. of this section.

“NQ-1 RETAIL DRINK LICENSE” A license issued to an applicant operating a convention center, railroad system, or state park. A qualifying convention center, railroad system, or state park holding a NQ-1 may purchase, receive, possess, and sell distilled spirits, wine and malt beverages by the drink for consumption on the licensed premises. The NQ-1 license does not authorize package sales. The licensee shall purchase alcoholic beverages only from licensed wholesalers or distributors. The holder of an NQ1 retail drink license under this section shall store alcoholic beverages in the manner prescribed in KRS 244.260.

“NQ-2 RETAIL DRINK LICENSE.” A license issued to an applicant operating a hotel, distiller or restaurant. A qualifying hotel, distiller or restaurant holding a NQ-2 may purchase, receive, possess, and sell distilled spirits, wine and malt beverages by the drink for consumption on the licensed premises. The NQ-2 license does not authorize package sales. The licensee shall purchase alcoholic beverages only from licensed wholesalers or distributors. A distiller may purchase its own products for retail drink sales under KRS 243.0305. The holder of an NQ2 retail drink license shall store alcoholic beverages in the manner prescribed in KRS 244.260.

“NQ-4 RETAIL DRINK LICENSE” A license issued to the holder of a quota retail drink license, microbrewery license, small farm winery license, or any other business wishing to sell malt beverages by the drink for consumption on the premises only. An NQ4 retail malt beverage drink license shall authorize the licensee to: sell malt beverages at retail by the drink from only the licensed premises for consumption at the licensed premises only; and purchase malt beverages only from a distributor. The holder of an NQ4 retail malt beverage drink license may also hold a nonquota retail malt beverage package license.

“NONQUOTA OR NQ MALT BEVERAGE PACKAGE LICENSE” A nonquota retail malt beverage package license shall authorize the licensee to sell malt beverages at retail by the package from the licensed premises only for consumption off the licensed premises only; and purchase malt beverages only from a distributor. The holder of a quota retail package license under KRS 243.240 may also obtain a license under this section. The holder of a nonquota retail malt beverage package license may also hold a NQ4 retail malt beverage drink license. A nonquota retail malt beverage package license shall not be issued to sell malt beverages at retail for any premises from which gasoline and lubricating oil are sold or from which the servicing and repair of motor vehicles is conducted, unless there is maintained in inventory on the premises for sale at retail not less than five thousand dollars (\$5,000) of food, groceries, and related products valued at cost. For purposes of this subsection, the term "food and groceries" has the meaning provided in KRS 243.280.

“QUOTA RETAIL DRINK LICENSE” A quota retail drink license shall authorize the licensee to purchase, receive, possess, and sell distilled spirits and wine at retail by the drink for consumption on the licensed premises. The licensee shall purchase distilled spirits and wine only from licensed wholesalers.

“QUOTA RETAIL PACKAGE LICENSE” A quota retail package license shall authorize the licensee to: purchase, receive, possess, and sell distilled spirits and wine at retail in unbroken packages only, and only for consumption off the licensed premises; and deliver or ship to the customer, at the customer's request, alcoholic beverages that are purchased: from the licensed premises where eighty

percent (80%) of the monthly gross sales receipts are sales to Kentucky residents, in quantities not to exceed four and one-half (4 1/2) liters of distilled spirits and four (4) cases of wine per purchaser per day for sales prior to January 1, 2021, and in quantities not to exceed an aggregate of nine (9) liters of distilled spirits and four (4) cases of wine per purchaser per day on and after January 1, 2021; and by subscription members or club program members, in quantities not to exceed an aggregate of nine (9) liters per calendar year for distilled spirits, and an aggregate of one (1) case of wine per month per calendar year, provided that the enrollment and payment for the subscription or club is arranged in person at the premises. The licensee shall purchase distilled spirits and wine in retail packages only and only from licensed wholesalers. All deliveries or shipments made pursuant to this section shall be made through a licensed transporter or licensed common carrier authorized to deliver or ship distilled spirits in the jurisdiction to which the products will be delivered or shipped.

"RECTIFIER LICENSE" A license allowing any person who rectifies, purifies, or refines distilled spirits or wine by any process other than as provided for on distillery premises, and every person who, without rectifying, purifying, or refining distilled spirits by mixing alcoholic beverages with any materials, manufactures any imitations of or compounds liquors for sale under the name of whiskey, brandy, gin, rum, wine, spirits, cordials, bitters, or any other name.

~~["SAMPLING LICENSE: A license that allows customers to sample distilled spirits and/or wine at a distillery, NQ 2 retail drink, quota retail drink or a quota retail package establishment that has met certain requirements.]~~

~~["SOUVENIR PACKAGE SUNDAY SALES." Pursuant to KRS 244.290(3)(b), a souvenir retail liquor license for Sunday sales may be issued to any licensed Kentucky distiller that has a gift shop or other retail outlet on its premises, if the distillery is located in wet territory and has a souvenir retail package license.]~~

~~["SOUVENIR RETAIL PACKAGE LICENSE." Any licensed Kentucky distiller that is located in wet territory and that has a gift shop or other retail outlet on its premises may conduct the activities permitted under this section as a part of its distiller's license.]~~

"SPECIAL SUNDAY RETAIL DRINK LICENSE." A license for holders of a Quota Retail Drink License, **a NQ1 Retail Drink License**, a NQ2 Retail Drink License or a NQ3 Retail Drink License that have applied to the state director and met all other legal requirements for obtaining a special Sunday retail drink license.

"WHOLESALE LICENSE" A license for any person who distributes alcoholic beverages for the purpose of being sold at retail, but it shall not include a subsidiary of a manufacturer or cooperative of a retail outlet.

(Ord. 491, passed 11-12-91; Am. Ord. 708, passed 11-28-00; Am. Ord. 2005-12, passed 04-26-05; Am. Ord. 2006-15, passed 6-20-06, Am. Ord. B2007-7, passed 4-24-07; Am. Ord. 2007-30, passed 11-27-07; Am. Ord. B2013-13, passed 7-12-13; Am. Ord. B2013-19, passed 11-26-13; Am. Ord. B2015-37, passed 12-29-15; Am. Ord. B2016-14, passed 9-27-16)

§ 114.20 CLASSIFICATION OF LICENSES; FEE SCHEDULE.

DISTILLED SPIRITS AND WINE LICENSES AND ANNUAL FEES	
Distiller	\$140
{Distillers + Souvenir Retail Package}	{\$290}
Rectifier	\$140
Wholesalers	\$410
Quota Retail Package	\$210
Quota Retail Drink	\$420
Special Temporary (per event)	\$75
<u>NQ-1 Retail Drink</u>	<u>\$1,000</u>
NQ-2 Retail Drink	\$490
NQ-3 Retail Drink	\$300
Special Temporary Alcoholic Beverage Auction (per event)	\$25

Special Sunday Retail Drink	\$180
Caterer	\$150
Bottling House or Bottling House Storage	\$400

MALT BEVERAGES AND ANNUAL FEES	
Brewer	\$140
Microbrewery	\$140
Distributor	\$140
NQ Retail Package	\$70
NQ-4 Retail Drink	\$70
<u>NQ Retail Package + NQ-4 Retail Drink</u>	\$120

(Ord. 491, passed 11-12-91; Am. Ord. 604, passed 5-30-96; Am. Ord. 746, passed 3-26-02; Am. Ord. 2005-12, passed 04-26-05; Am. Ord. 2006-15, passed 6-20-06, Am. Ord. B2007-7, passed 4-24-07; Am. Ord. 2007-30, passed 11-27-07; Am. Ord. B2009-03, passed 05-12-09; Am. Ord. B2012-04, passed 4-24-12; Am. Ord. B2013-04, passed 3-26-13; Am. Ord. B2013-13, passed 7-12-13; Am. Ord. B2013-19, passed 11-26-13; Am. Ord. B2015-37, passed 12-29-15; Am. Ord. B2016-14, passed 9-27-16) Penalty, see § 114.99

§ 114.40 HOURS OF SALE.

- (A) Except as provided in division (D), no premises for which there has been granted a license for the sale of distilled spirits or wine at retail by the drink or by the package shall be permitted to remain open for any purpose between 1:00 a.m. and 6:00 a.m., Monday through Saturday. However, that premise shall be permitted to remain open during the hours the polls are open on primary, or regular, local option, or special election day. (KRS 244.290)
- (B) Except as provided in division (D), no brewer or distributor shall deliver any malt beverages ~~on Sunday or~~ between the hours of 12:00 a.m. and 6:00 a.m. on any ~~other~~ day of the week. No retailer shall sell, give away, or deliver any malt beverages between 1:00 a.m. and 6:00 a.m. ~~or at any time during the 23 hours of a Sunday after 1:00 a.m.~~ A retailer may sell malt beverages during the hours the polls are open on a primary or regular, local option or special election day. (KRS 244.480)
- (C) In all places wherein spirituous, vinous, or intoxicating liquors or malt beverages are sold by the drink for consumption on the premises in the city, all customers must vacate the premises by 1:30 a.m.
- (D) (1) The hours of operation for a premise that has been granted a Special Sunday Retail Drink License shall be the hours of ~~[1:00 p.m.]~~ **10:00 a.m.** to 12:00 midnight on Sundays. This division (D) does not exempt retailers from observing all other conditions and requirements under any other ordinance or laws of the Commonwealth of Kentucky. (KRS 244.290)

(2) A ~~[premise which has been granted a Souvenir Package Sunday Sale License]~~ **distiller with a gift shop selling souvenir packages** shall be eligible to operate between the hours of 12:00 noon to 12:00 midnight on Sunday. ~~[Convenience stores, grocery stores and packaged liquor stores]~~ **Businesses** which have been granted a NQ-4 Retail Malt Beverage ~~[Package]~~ **Drink License, Nonquota Retail Malt Beverage Package License** and/or Quota Retail Package License shall be eligible to operate between the hours of 6:00 am to 12:00 midnight on Sunday.
- (E) Private clubs which meet the requirements below shall be eligible to receive a Special Sunday Retail Drink License. The hours of operation for a facility holding a Special Sunday retail drink license shall be the hours of ~~[1:00 pm]~~ **10:00 a.m.** to 12:00 midnight on Sundays. This division does not exempt retailers from observing all other conditions and requirements under any other ordinance or laws of the state (KRS 244.290). Eligible private clubs are those which have been granted all appropriate licenses for the sale of distilled spirits, wine and malt beverages which:
 - (1) Are non-profit, eleemosynary organizations with a membership of at least 200; and
 - (2) Have been in existence for a period of at least two years.
- (F) Per KRS 244.290, in years where December 31, (New Year's Eve) falls on a Sunday, the hours

of operation, on December 31, for any facility holding a valid distilled spirits and wine retail drink license, or a malt beverage retail drink license per § 114.20, shall be from [~~1:00 pm~~] **10:00 a.m.** to 1:00 am Monday morning January 1. This division does not exempt retailers from observing all other conditions and requirements under any other ordinance or laws of the state.

(G) Holders of Special Temporary (Special Event) licenses shall be eligible for Sunday Sales between the hours of [~~1:00 pm~~] **10:00 a.m.** to 12:00 midnight.

(Ord. 491, passed 11-12-91; Am. Ord. 501, passed 5-12-92; Am. Ord. 511, passed 9-8-92; Am. Ord. 746, passed 3-26-02, Am. Ord. 2005-12, passed 4-26-05; Am. Ord. B2006-15, passed 6-20-06; Am. Ord. B2006-26, passed 9-26-06; Am. Ord. B2007-07, passed 4-24-07; Am. Ord. B2009-02, passed 5-12-09; Am. Ord. B2012-04, passed 4-24-12; Am. Ord. B2013-13, passed 7-12-13; Am. Ord. B2013-19, passed 11-26-13; Am. Ord. B2014-16, passed 6-24-14; Am. Ord. B2015-37, passed 12-29-15)

§ 114.43 DISPLAY OF REQUIRED LICENSES AND CERTAIN SIGNS.

As required by KRS 244.083, a city licensee who has a valid city retail distilled spirits, wine, or malt beverage license shall cause to be displayed in a conspicuous, prominent place on the license premises each of the following documents so that they may be seen and observed by all persons entering the licensed premises:

(A) A sign or placard at least 8 inches by 11 inches in size with the following message printed on or displayed thereon in 30 point or larger type:

“Persons under the age of twenty-one (21) years are subject to a fine up to [~~Five~~] **One** Hundred (~~[\$500.00]~~ **100.00**) Dollars if they:

- (1) Enter license premises to buy or have served or delivered to them any alcoholic beverages; or
- (2) Possess, purchase or attempt to purchase any alcoholic beverages; or
- (3) Misrepresent their age for the purpose of purchasing or obtaining alcoholic beverages.”

(Ord. 491, passed 11-12-91; Am. Ord. B2013-04, passed 3-26-13) Penalty, see § 114.99

Statutory reference:

Display of state license required, see KRS 243.620, 244.270, and 244.360

§ 114.99 PENALTY

(A) ~~—[Any person who violates any of the provisions of this chapter shall, upon conviction thereof in a court of competent jurisdiction, be guilty of a misdemeanor and shall be sentenced to pay a fine for each offense or violation of not more than five hundred dollars (\$500).]~~

(B) Any person who violates the distillers license fee provisions **of § 114.20** shall, upon conviction and in accordance with KRS 243.990 (2), be guilty of a **Class B** misdemeanor and shall be sentenced to pay a fine of not less than one hundred dollars (\$100) nor more than two hundred **and fifty** dollars (~~[\$200]~~ **250**), or sentenced to imprisonment for no more than [~~six~~] **three** months, or both for the first offense. For the second offense, the person shall be **guilty of a Class A misdemeanor and** fined not less than two hundred **and fifty** dollars (~~[\$200]~~ **250**) nor more than five hundred dollars (\$500), or sentenced to imprisonment for no more than [~~six~~] **twelve** months, or both. On the third and each subsequent offense, the person shall be **guilty of a Class D felony and** sentenced to pay a fine of not less than [~~five hundred (\$500)]~~ **one thousand (\$1000)** nor more than [~~five thousand dollars (\$5000)]~~ **ten thousand dollars (\$10,000)**, or sentenced to imprisonment for not more than five years, or both. **The penalties provided for in this subsection shall be in addition to the revocation of the offender’s license.**

(C) Any person who violates any provision of [~~§ 114.20, other than as discussed in division (B) of this section, or any provisions of~~] §§ 114.21 through §§144.26, 114.40, 114.42, **and** 114.44 ~~and 114.45~~ shall, upon conviction and in accordance with KRS 243.990 [~~(5)]~~ **(1)** and 244.990 (1), be guilty of a misdemeanor and shall be fined not less than one hundred dollars (\$100) nor more than two hundred **and fifty** dollars [~~[\$200)]~~ **(\$250)**, or be imprisoned no more than [~~six~~] **three** months, or both for the first offense. On the second and each subsequent offense, the person shall be fined not less than two

hundred **and fifty** dollars [~~(\$200)~~] **(\$250)** nor more than five hundred dollars (\$500), or be imprisoned for no more than [~~six~~] **twelve** months, or both.

(D) Any person who violates any provisions of § 114.43 shall, upon conviction and in accordance with KRS 244.990 [(5)] **(4)**, be deemed to have committed a violation and shall be fined not less than ten dollars (\$10) nor more than [~~one hundred~~] **two hundred and fifty** dollars [~~(\$100)~~] **(\$250)**.

(E) Any person who violates any provision of § 114.45 shall, upon conviction and in accordance with KRS 244.990(5) and (6), be deemed to have committed a violation and shall be fined not less than ten dollars (\$10) nor more than [~~one hundred dollars (\$100)~~] **two hundred and fifty dollars (\$250)** for misrepresentation of age. **For each subsequent offense, the person shall be guilty of a Class A misdemeanor and fined not less than two and fifty hundred dollars (\$250) nor more than five hundred dollars (\$500). For any person under the age of eighteen (18) years, a violation shall be deemed a status offense and shall be under the jurisdiction of the juvenile session of District Court or the family division of the Circuit Court, as appropriate.** [~~For use of a false, fraudulent, or altered identification card, paper, or other document to purchase, attempt to purchase, or otherwise obtain any alcoholic beverage, the person shall be fined not less than fifty dollars (\$50) nor more than five hundred dollars (\$500) for a first offense. For a second and each subsequent offense, the person shall be fined not less than two hundred dollars (\$200) nor more than two thousand dollars (\$2000).~~]
(Ord. 491, passed 11-12-91; Am. Ord. B2013-04, passed 3-26-13)

All ordinances in conflict herewith are hereby repealed to the extent of such conflict.

This Ordinance shall take effect and be in force immediately upon its passage, approval, and publication as required by law.

COUNCILMAN COPELAND MOVED TO ADOPT ORDINANCE B2018-18 AS READ IN SUMMARY. THE MOTION WAS DULY SECONDED BY COUNCILMAN SHECKLES.

THE MAYOR CALLED THE ROLL AND THE FOLLOWING VOTED:

COUNCILMAN KELLEY	-	AYE
COUNCILMAN COPELAND	-	AYE
COUNCILMAN BUCKMAN	-	AYE
COUNCILMAN WILLIAMS	-	AYE
COUNCILMAN SHECKLES	-	AYE
COUNCILMAN DONES	-	AYE

MAYOR HEATON THEN DECLARED ORDINANCE NO. B2018-18 ADOPTED. IT WILL BE RECORDED IN ORDINANCE BOOK NO. 10, PAGE NO. _____.

ADJOURNMENT

COUNCILMAN SHECKLES MOVED TO ADJOURN THE MEETING AT 5:49PM. THE MOTION WAS DULY SECONDED BY COUNCILMAN WILLIAMS AND CARRIED BY A VOTE OF 6 TO 0.

CITY OF BARDSTOWN

J. Richard Heaton, Mayor

ATTEST:

Mary Riley, City Clerk